
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council  

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE: May 5, 2022 

SUBJECT: Agenda Information – 5/10/2022 

The following is additional or summary information regarding matters on the upcoming Town 
Council Agenda.  The numbering below follows the agenda, and some routine or self-
explanatory items are not discussed in this memo.  As you review your packet materials, please 
do not hesitate to contact the appropriate staff member or me prior to the Council meeting 
with any questions or concerns.  Often, these conversations can help staff and me be prepared 
for the Council meeting and be ready to facilitate a more productive and efficient meeting for 
everyone.  

8 Old Business 
8b Consideration of the Schedule of Fees and Charges – In accordance with the newly 
created policy, the Town Council is asked to review both the existing fees and charges assessed 
by the Town for various services and activities as well as the proposed increases to some of 
those fees and charges effective in the new fiscal year.  Many of the existing fees/charges are 
not proposed to increase.  However, some are proposed to increase to better reflect the actual 
cost of providing the service and to be comparable to area municipalities.  In the case of 
fire/fire safety permitting, these are proposed new fees.  Currently, no fees are charged for plan 
review and permitting of projects subject to the State fire safety codes aside from general fees 
charged for building permits, which make no distinction between residential and commercial 
work in terms of rate. 

Recommendation:  Approve the current fees and determine whether to implement 
some or all of the increases. 

9 New Business 
9a Consideration of an update to Police Department Use of Force General Order – As 
described in Chief Woessner’s memorandum, the Council is asked to consider an update to the 
Department’s General Order 3.1 regarding Use of Force to identify an updated, electronically-
filed form required by the State and to identify the party responsible for submitting the form 
when necessary. 

Recommendation:  Approve the updated General Order. 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 5/10/2022 
May 5, 2022 
Page 2 
 

 
 

9b Actions Related to Regulation of Accessory Dwelling Units – The Council is asked to 
consider affirming a decision made by the Planning and Zoning Commission to Opt Out of the 
recently adopted State Law making Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) a permitted use in 
residential zoning districts.  ADU are secondary residential spaces that are either attached to or 
in a separate building from the main residential building on a lot.  The accessory unit is 
secondary to the main unit with a separate entrance containing full facilities including kitchens 
and bathrooms and operating as a separate living space.    As described in the material from 
Planning and Zoning Official DeCarli, the law provides regulations under which ADU would be 
permitted uses in all residential districts.  The Town’s regulations have allowed ADU for some 
time in most residential districts with slightly different requirements and as a Special Use with 
permission of the Planning Commission.  By opting out of the State regulation, the Town’s 
existing regulations would remain in place.  In order to exercise this option, the Town Council 
must concur with the Planning and Zoning Commission by a motion adopted by a 2/3 majority 
vote (5 of 7).  If the Council disagrees, the Town will become subject to the State Law. 

 Recommendation:  Adopt a motion to concur with the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and opt out of the State Law. 

 

9c Determination of the plan for soliciting public input and deciding the policy regarding 
various Adult Use Cannabis activities – As the Council will recall, in October 2021, an ordinance 
was adopted establishing a temporary one-year moratorium on cannabis-related commercial 
activities in East Hampton in response to the State Law adopted last summer that provided the 
framework for legal recreational adult use cannabis growth, production and sales.  Prior to establishing 
the moratorium, the Council met in a combined meeting with the Planning and Zoning Commission to 
discuss the matter.  The Council is asked at this meeting to discuss how it wishes to proceed.  There are 
two fundamental questions the community must answer; whether it wishes to allow any of the 
regulated activities and, if so, how will they be regulated.  If the Council wishes to consider the first 
question of whether any of the regulated activities will be allowed in Town without involvement from 
the Planning and Zoning Commission, it would be appropriate to determine a date for either a public 
hearing at a regular Council meeting or a separate public workshop at which comments from the public 
could be taken.  If the Planning and Zoning Commission were to be involved in this phase, a combined 
meeting could be called.  If the decision were made to disallow the use, an ordinance would be adopted 
by the Town Council prohibiting the use.  If some or all of the regulated uses were going to be allowed, 
the Planning and Zoning Commission would be asked to develop the local regulations. 

A process for considering the questions could be as follows.   



Town Council - Agenda Information – 5/10/2022 
May 5, 2022 
Page 3 
 

 
 

First session (Council or both) - Staff will give a brief presentation and outline the portions of the 
legislation that pertain to the Town including a summary/fact sheet, which will be available prior to the 
meeting, followed by public comment. 

Second session - Brief recap of legislation (as necessary) and previous meeting followed by additional 
public comment and discussion of what was heard and best way to proceed.  

Additional sessions could be implemented as needed.  If there were regulations needed, the Planning 
and Zoning Commission would handle that work in the months prior to expiration of the moratorium.  If 
necessary, the Council can extend the moratorium for a limited time in order to finish any work that has 
not been completed by October. 

 Recommendation:  Determine how the Council wishes to proceed. 

 

9d Discussion of possible property purchase on Daly Road – The Council is asked to consider 
whether the Town might be interested in purchasing an open space property owned by the East 
Hampton Rotary Foundation on Daly Road.  The Rotary Foundation received the property a few years 
ago and the property is deed restricted to recreational-type uses.  The Rotary Foundation has offered 
the land to the Town because the Foundations proposed uses are not consistent with the desire of the 
community.  The property abuts both Daly Road and the Air Line Trail and is generally adjacent to other 
properties owned by the Town and the Middlesex Land Trust between the Memorial School site and the 
Trail.  If the Council is interested in the site, an Executive Session is included in this agenda for potential 
discussion of a negotiation stance if desired. 

 Recommendation:  Determine whether the Town is interested in purchasing the land. 

 

9e Sears Park Beach Rehabilitation and Additional Sand – The Council is asked to review the 
concept of taking steps to put additional sand at the Sears Park beach and a coordinated project to 
reduce major run off that occurs on the south end of the beach where the paved path from the parking 
lot extends.  Staff from the Parks and Recreation Department have implemented a number of projects at 
Sears Park as described in the Park’s master plan that are intended to reduce the amount of runoff and 
washout that occurs at the beach.  These projects have been successful in mitigating many of the 
washout events that occurred in the past.  The planned project is one of the last to improve the area 
and is expected to be funded with Watershed Improvements funds available in the Capital Reserve 
Fund.  Additionally, there is a desire from some members of the public to install additional sand on the 
beach to restore the beach to a sandier condition than it has been in recent years.  Some Council 
members will recall that for a number of decades, a short timber retaining wall was used to elevate the 
beach above the lake level, but that the wall was removed, and the beach regraded in about 2016.  Any 
major work that is completed at Sears Park generally requires approval of not only the Parks and 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 5/10/2022 
May 5, 2022 
Page 4 
 

 
 

Recreation Advisory Board and the Town Council but also of the Town’s Inland Wetlands and 
Watercourses Agency (IWWA).  It is anticipated that the IWWA will be very careful about any approval 
that includes the addition of sand at the beach and will evaluate how the Town plans to keep the sand 
from being lost into the lake.  The recent improvements and the proposed improvement, which prevent 
washout across the beach, are major factors in keeping sand from washing into the lake.  The Council is 
asked to consider the draft construction plans as well as the general plan to add sand to the beach and 
to endorse one or both of the pursuits. 

 Recommendation:  Determine whether to support the plans and additional beach sand. 

The remainder of the items are of a routine nature, in the sole purview of the Council or are 
announcements.  Please contact me or the appropriate staff member with questions or 
concerns. 



Town Council Public Hearing 1 4/26/2022 Minutes 

EAST HAMPTON TOWN COUNCIL 
PUBLIC HEARING 

TUESDAY, APRIL 26, 2022 
TOWN HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS- ROOM #107 AND VIA ZOOM 

6:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Call to Order 
Chairman Philhower called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. in the Town Hall Council Chambers and 
via Zoom. 

Public Hearing for an Ordinance Amending Chapter 273 of the Code of the Town of East 
Hampton Regarding Streets and Sidewalks Concerning Limited Maintenance of Private Roads 

Karen Asetta, 5 Fern Lane- Ms. Asetta stated that the town originally supported Fern Lane. The street 
was paved years ago when it was a dirt road. To the residents of Fern Lane, it feels like the rug is being 
pulled out from under them.  

Terese Fishman- 13 Fern Lane- Ms. Fishman suggested there should be changes to the ordinance for 
fixing certain areas of the road. The pavement filled in the potholes are coming out. She suggested 
repaving sections of the road that are needed and causing problems to the residents.  

Pam Hatfield- 37 Fern Lane- Ms. Hatfield stated she is against code 273-16 b and c of the ordinance. 
It is unclear to the residents about what to expect for the service and maintenance of the road in the 
future if the ordinance is passed. Ms. Hatfield suggested finding other solutions to help both the 
residents and town.  

Giselle Bozzi- 2 Poe Road- Ms. Bozzi sent a letter signed by the residents to the town. Poe Road is 
one of two private roads that haven’t been paved. Poe Road leads to the lake. Infiltration and 
contaminates could go into the lake from that road. There is a petition for the town to take over the 
roads and how to fix the deteriorating roads.  

Deborah Mongiat- 6 Byron Road- Ms. Mongiat mentioned there is a petition from 2014 to turn the 
roads over to the town. The town is willing to take the roads as is. Some of the private roads have 
sewer systems connected for the residents. Ms. Mongiat stated that some of the private roads are not 
viewed as equal. She also mentioned that the residents are concerned and worried that the roads will 
deteriorate. The residents want the town to take over the maintenance of the road.  

Adjournment 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to adjourn the Public Hearing at 6:12 p.m. 
Voted 7-0 in favor. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Katrina Aligata 
Recording Clerk 

Agenda Item 3a



 
Town Council Regular Meeting 1 4/26/2022 Minutes  

Town of East Hampton 
Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, April 26, 2022 
Town Hall Council Chambers #107 and via Zoom 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present: Chairman Mark Philhower, Vice Chairman Tim Feegel, Council Members Pete Brown, 
Brandon Goff, Eric Peterson, Kevin Reich, and Alison Walck and Town Manager David Cox. 
 
Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance 
Chairman Philhower called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Town Hall Council Chambers and 
via Zoom. 
 
Adoption of Agenda 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to adopt the agenda as submitted. Voted 
(7-0). 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Goff, to approve of the minutes of the Town 
Council Regular Meeting of April 12, 2022 as written. Voted (7-0) 
 
Public Remarks 
Paul Smith, Superintendent of Schools - There is an unprecedented raise in the health insurance to 
10.5% for renewals for the 2022/2023 years. He is hoping the budget won’t make cuts for the teacher 
and staff positions. Approximately 280 out of 350 school employees participate in the health 
insurance. The Board of Education estimated the expense to be only 5% in their budget proposal sent 
in to the Board of Finance. With the drastic raise to 10.5% the budget would be short $200,000. At the 
Board of Education meeting the previous night, Mr. Smith stated that he would review after the open 
enrollment period. This would resort to ideally reducing the mass specialist paid for the American 
Rescue Plan funds as necessary. Rather than fund the position for two years it will be reduced to one 
year with the funds transferring to fund the health insurance increase. He is also asking to reconsider 
the $195,000 cut since there may be a solution to the health insurance percentage raise.  
 
Ted Turner, 223 Hog Hill Road, Mr. Turner stated that the Board of Finance sent a lean budget to the 
Town Council. A lot of items were cut within the budget. He stated that he hopes the proposed 
lieutenant position in the Police Department won’t be cut. Mr. Turner also stated that it would only 
cost taxpayers $6 to fund the lieutenant position. 
 
Dennis Woessner, Chief of Police, Mr. Woessner stated no one wants to raise the taxes or the mill rate 
for the town. The lieutenant position would be an increase of $25,000. The plan would be to take one 
of the captains and promote him to the lieutenant position. There would be enough work for the 
lieutenant to keep them busy each day. Mr. Woessner also mentioned a need for a clear chain of 
command in the Police Department. If the police chief is out sick or anything else, the next person in 
charge is the Town Manager. That chain of command problem needs to be addressed. 
 



 
Town Council Regular Meeting 2 4/26/2022 Minutes  

Kurt Comisky, 62 Wopowog Road, Mr. Comisky is for the new lieutenant position. He stated there 
needs to be a clear #1 and #2 for a proper chain of command or power structure.  
 
Salvatore Nucifora, 147 Colchester Avenue, Mr. Nucifora stated the 10.5% health insurance increase 
was completely unexpected. This raise throws everything out of sync. The schools are on track to 
bring scores and grades up to pre-pandemic levels. He also stated that the Board of Education budget 
was asked to be increased by $50,000 rather than decreased.  
 
Nancy Nafis, 16 Daly Road, Ms. Nafis stated that she is for the Board of Education budget. There 
shouldn’t be cuts to that budget, rather it should be voted/ accepted as is by the Town Council. 
 
Paul Wisnieski, Fernwood Drive, Mr. Wisnieski stated he is for the lieutenant position in the Police 
Department and is against any teacher cuts in the Board of Education budget. He said the class size is 
up to 30 making the number of teachers stretched thin if cuts were made.  
 
Tania Sones, 17 Curry Lane, Ms. Sones stated she is for the town and Board of Education budgets. 
She was against the teacher cuts made a couple years ago. Making an extreme cut would cause an 
uproar.  
 
Emily Cronin, 24 Abbey Road, Ms. Cronin stated she wants no further cuts to the budget and add 
more money to cover the health insurance percentage raise. 
 
Jennifer Corvo, 72 O’Neil Lane, Ms. Corvo stated she is against any additional cuts to the budget and 
the budget proposed would be the best for the community. 
 
Presentations 
None 
 
Bids & Contracts 
None 
 
Resolutions/ Ordinances/ Policies/ Proclamations 

a. Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 273 of the Code of the Town of East 
Hampton Regarding Streets and Sidewalks Concerning Limited Maintenance of Private 
Roads: The ordinance was reviewed and redrafted to try to satisfy and appease all residents 
affected. Mr. Reich wanted to thank the residents of Fern Lane for talking out and standing up 
for the protection of their road. It was stated that the roads need to be safe for the residents, 
commuters, Police, Fire, and EMS. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Peterson, to approve the Ordinance 
amending Chapter 273 of the Code of the Town of East Hampton regarding streets and 
sidewalks concerning limited maintenance of private roads as written. Voted (7-0). 

 
Continued Business 

a. Sub-Committee Reports & Updates 
Mr. Reich reported that there wasn’t a meeting held yet for High School Athletic Fields 
Building Committee. The resurfacing of the track would start next week and would take a 



 
Town Council Regular Meeting 3 4/26/2022 Minutes  

couple weeks. The tennis court will be resurfaced after school ends. The first baseball game of 
the season will be tomorrow night on the newly renovated field. 
 
Mr. Cox reported on the Water Sub-Committee, they will be meeting in the first week of May. 
The committee will review the draft of the preliminary report for the state, talk about the 
progress on testing potential well sites. This is in anticipation of moving into some designs of 
the water tracks. 
 

b. Consideration & Possible Action on 2022-2023 General Government & Board of 
Education Budgets and Capital Plan 
The Town Council members were able to review the budgets provided by the Board of Finance. 
The budget submitted has doubled the road repair. New computers and smart boards were 
provided at the Middle School. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Ms. Walck, to approve the Fiscal Year 2023 
Board of Education Budget in the amount of $34,273,597 as presented by the Board of Finance. 
Voted (7-0) 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Ms. Walck, to approve the Fiscal Year 2023 
Town General Government Budget in the amount of $17,486,368 as presented. Voted (4-3) 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Ms. Walck, to approve the motion to use 
$500,000 of Unassigned Fund Balance to offset levy needs for Debt Service in Fiscal year 
2023. Voted (7-0) 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to approve the motion to call the 
Annual Town Budget Meeting for 6:00pm on Tuesday, May 10 in the Town Hall to be 
adjourned to referendum vote in accordance with Charter Section 4.1 with the recommended 
referendum date of Tuesday, May 17. Voted (7-0) 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to approve the Fiscal Year 2023 
Capital Improvements Plan in the amount of $1,751,825 which includes a reduction of $55,000 
and elimination of the Sears Park Pickleball Court project. Voted (5-2) 
 

New Business 
a. Consideration of a Schedule of Fees and Charges 

A list of fees recommended for increases were provided for the meeting. The members will 
review the list and consider each for voting at the next meeting. 
 

Town Manager’s Report 
Mr. Cox provided his written report for the Council members which will be included with the minutes 
filed in the Town Clerk’s Office. 
 
Appointments 
None 
 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 4 4/26/2022 Minutes 

Tax Refunds 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to approve the tax refunds in the amount 
of $796.76. Voted (7-0) 

Public Remarks 
Danielle Seretny, 16 Fernwood Drive, Ms. Seretny wanted to thank the Council members for 
supporting the education budget. She stated the members could show more of a civil discussion while 
voting on the town budgets. 

Kurt Comisky, 62 Wopowog Road, Mr. Comisky stated the Police Department needs a lieutenant 
structurally and a strong chain of command.  

Pam Hatfield, 37 Fern Lane, Ms. Hatfield asked the Council when the assessment work be completed? 
When will work be on the road? 

Communications, Correspondence & Announcements 
None 

Adjournment 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to adjourn the meeting at 7:51pm. Voted 
(7-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Katrina Aligata 
Recording Clerk 



Schedule of Fees and Charges DRAFT ‐ 4/21/22

Code Reference (If applicable)

Chapter Section Subsection Description  Current Fee   Proposed Fee Effective 

7/1/2022 

Notes

1 8 Sale of Code book  $ 125.00   $ 125.00  Entire Book from codifier.  Sections or 

pages provided pursuant to standard 

copying rates.

12 5 Cemetery Fees

Plots  $ 500.00   $ 500.00 

Opening  $ 600.00   $ 600.00 

117 5 Charge for Bid Documents  Reasonable fee associated with 

the production of hard copies at 

the discretion of the Town 

Manager 

 Reasonable fee associated with 

the production of hard copies at 

the discretion of the Town 

Manager 

161 7 Amusement Devices

Annual License  $ 100.00   $ 100.00  per device/machine

Seasonal License  $ 50.00   $ 50.00  per device/machine

192 6 Nonrefundable Excavation Permit 

Application Fee (Road Opening)

 $ 45.00   $ 45.00  Plus Bond/Security

192 6 Excavation Fee (in paved surface)  $ 15.00   $ 15.00  Plus Bond/Security

Driveway Permit  $ 5.00   $ 25.00 

200 8 Land Use Application Fees

A Inland/Wetland Agency

Application Fee Residential  $ 50.00   $ 50.00  Per each lot plus Schedule A Fee and 

DEEP fee

Application Fee Commercial, Industrial, 

other

 $ 400.00   $ 400.00  Per each lot plus Schedule A Fee and 

DEEP fee

Authorized Agent Approval  $ 30.00   $ 30.00 

Public Hearing Fee ‐ Single Residential 

Lot

 $ 100.00   $ 100.00 

Public Hearing Fee ‐ Subdivision  $ 300.00   $ 300.00 

Public Hearing Fee ‐ Commercial, 

Industrial, other

 $ 300.00   $ 300.00 

Complex Application Fee  Actual Cost   Actual Cost  Pursuant to Section 19 of the EHIWWA 

regulations

Regulation Amendment Petitions  $ 100.00   $ 100.00  Not including Notices or DEEP 

Regulation Advisories

Map Amendment Petitions  $ 10.00   $ 10.00  Plus Schedule B Cost

Residential Approval Modification  $ 25.00   $ 25.00 

Subdivision Approval Modification  $ 50.00   $ 50.00 

Commercial, Industrial, Other Approval 

Modification

 $ 75.00   $ 75.00 

Renewal of Previous Approval  $ 50.00   $ 50.00 

Schedule A (area of regulated activity 

on wetlands, watercourses and upland 

review areas)

<1000 Sq. Ft.  $ ‐     $ ‐   

1000<=5000 Sq. Ft.  $ 200.00   $ 200.00 

>5000  $ 400.00   $ 400.00 

Schedule B (linear feet of wetland 

and/or watercourse boundary subject 

to change)

<500  $ ‐     $ ‐   

500<=1000  $ 100.00   $ 100.00 

>1000  $ 200.00   $ 200.00 

B Zoning Board of Appeals  $ 160.00   $ 300.00 

C Site Plan Approval/Special Permit

Residential  $ 150.00   $ 150.00 

Commercial, Industrial, Designed 

Development 3000 Sq Ft or less

 $ 150.00   $ 150.00 

Commercial, Industrial, Designed 

Development 3001 ‐ 5000 Sq Ft

 $ 250.00   $ 250.00 

Commercial, Industrial, Designed 

Development 5001 ‐ 10,000 Sq Ft

 $ 600.00   $ 600.00 

Commercial, Industrial, Designed 

Development 10001 ‐ 15000 Sq Ft

 $ 1,100.00   $ 1,100.00 

Commercial, Industrial, Designed 

Development Each Additional 5000 Sq 

Ft or increment above 15000 Sq Ft

 $ 500.00   $ 500.00 

Site Plan Modification ‐ Minor  $ 50.00   $ 50.00 

Site Plan Modification ‐ Major  $ 100.00   $ 100.00 

D Special Permit Apartment Complex  $1000 plus $100  per unit   $1000 plus $100  per unit 

E Subdivision Plan 

Page 1 of 3

Agenda Item 8b



Schedule of Fees and Charges DRAFT ‐ 4/21/22

Code Reference (If applicable)

Chapter Section Subsection Description  Current Fee   Proposed Fee Effective 

7/1/2022 

Notes

>5 lots  $500 plus $150 per lot   $500 plus $150 per lot  Plus state fee

1<5 lots  $150 per lot   $150 per lot  Plus state fee

F Other Planning and Zoning 

Commission

Zoning or Subdivision Regulation Text 

Amendment

 $                                         300.00   $                                         300.00 

Zoning Map Change  $                                         500.00   $                                         500.00 

G Middle Haddam Historic District  $                                           25.00   $                                           25.00 

Administrative Zoning and Land Use 

fees

New Principle Structure  $                                           50.00   $                                         100.00 

Addition to existing primary structure  $                                           10.00   $                                           75.00 

New  Accessory Structure  $                                           10.00   $                                           50.00 

First Cut Lot Division  No Charge   $                                           40.00 

New Shed <200 Square Feet  $                                           10.00   $                                           25.00 

Lot Line Revision  No Charge   $                                           25.00 

Filling/Excavation/Grading <5,000 sf  $                                           25.00   $                                           25.00 

All Other ZEO Approval  No Charge   $                                           25.00 

219 9 Rooming House License ‐ Annual  Not Established   Not Established 

Building Permit Fees

Minimum Fee  $                                           25.00   $                                           25.00 

First $1,000 of construction value  $                                           25.00   $                                           25.00  Value substantially in conformance 

with RS Means or similar data source 

for the area or verified third party 

construction contract with estimates

Each additional $1,000 or portion 

thereof.

 $                                           12.50   $                                           12.50  Value substantially in conformance 

with RS Means or similar data source 

for the area or verified third party 

construction contract with estimates

Fire Safety Permit Fees (Commercial 

Only)

Building Plan Review

<2000 Square Feet  N/C   $                                           65.00 

2000<5000 Sq. Ft  N/C   $                                         150.00 

5000<10,000 Sq. Ft.  N/C   $                                         350.00 

10,000<50,000 Sq. Ft.  N/C   $                                         600.00 

50,000<  N/C   $                                         850.00 

Site Plan Review  N/C   $                                         100.00 

Fire Alarm (Building Size)

<5000  N/C   $                                           70.00 

5000<10,000  N/C   $                                         125.00 

10,000<50,000  N/C   $                                         225.00 

50,000<  N/C   $                                         520.00 

Sprinkler Systems (Area Protected)

<5000  N/C   $                                           70.00 

5000<10,000  N/C   $                                         125.00 

10,000<50,000  N/C   $                                         225.00 

50,000<  N/C   $                                         520.00 

Hood Systems

Suppression Systems  N/C   $                                         100.00 

Hood and Ductwork (Mechanicals)  N/C   $                                         100.00 

Propane Installations

Propane Filling Station  N/C   $                                         100.00 

Propane Tank Exchange Station  N/C   $                                           25.00 

Commercial Cooking or Heating  N/C   $                                           50.00 

Outdoor Fireplace or Fire Pit  N/C   $                                           50.00 

Modifications, alterations, additions to 

existing alarm or sprinkler systems.

 N/C   1/2 of original permit fee 

269 4 Non‐Resident Refuse Disposal  Not Established   Not Established 

269 5 Resident Refuse Disposal  Not Established   Not Established 

Transfer Station

Tires < 20 inch  $                                              5.00   $                                              5.00  per tire

Tires >=20 inch  $                                           10.00   $                                           10.00  per tire

Stuffed Chair  $                                              5.00   $                                              5.00 

Page 2 of 3



Schedule of Fees and Charges DRAFT ‐ 4/21/22

Code Reference (If applicable)

Chapter Section Subsection Description  Current Fee   Proposed Fee Effective 

7/1/2022 

Notes

Couch  $ 30.00   $ 30.00 

Bulky Waste Car Load  $ 5.00   $ 5.00 

Bulky Waste Short Bed Truck/Minivan 

Load

 $ 20.00   $ 20.00 

Bulky Waste Long/Standard Bed 

Truck/Van Load

 $ 30.00   $ 30.00 

Dump Truck  $ 80.00   $ 80.00 

Trailer  $ 30.00   $ 30.00 

Annual Sticker  $ 10.00   $ 10.00  Required for Entry

269 19 Refuse Collectors and Vehicles

B Collector License ‐ Annual   $ 35.00   $ 35.00  Includes one vehicle

D Vehicle/Container Registration ‐ 

Annual per vehicle

 $ 15.00   $ 15.00  Each beyond first.

228 2 Junk Dealer License ‐ Annual  Not Established   Not Established 

228 2 Junk Dealer Vehicle ‐ Per Vehicle  Not Established   Not Established 

250 3 Peddlers License  Provided in Code section 

Application Fee  $ 20.00   $ 20.00 

One Month License   $ 25.00   $ 25.00 

Six Month License  $ 125.00   $ 125.00 

One Year License  $ 200.00   $ 200.00 

282 5 Wrecker List Placement Fee  $ 50.00   $ 50.00 

Police Department Private Duty

Officer Per Hour Weekdays (Four Hour 

Increments)

 $ 82.00   $ 85.00  Per Hour

Officer Per Hour Weekends/Holidays 

(Four Hour increments)

 $ 100.00   $ 105.00  Per Hour

Vehicle ‐ Weekdays  (IRS Rate*30) per hour of 

Officer time 

 (IRS Rate*30) per hour of 

Officer time 

Per hour

Vehicle ‐ Weekends  (IRS Rate*30) per hour of 

Officer time 

 (IRS Rate*30) per hour of 

Officer time 

Per hour

Non‐Profit Rate Weekdays (Vehicle 

Included, 4 hour increments)

 $ 72.00   $ 75.00  Per Hour

Non‐Profit Rate Weekends/Holidays 

(Vehicle Included, 4 hour increments)

 $ 94.00   $ 99.00  Per Hour

Non‐Resident Fingerprinting  $ 10.00   $ 10.00 

Pistol Permit Administration Fee  $ 70.00   $ 70.00  Set by State

Record copies and access fees  In accordance with State Law   In accordance with State Law 

Program/Activity Fees  Determined per program by the 

Director of the 

Department/Division presenting 

the program (e.g. Parks and 

Recreation, Library, Senior 

Center, Etc.) subject to review 

by the Town Manager 

 Determined per program by the 

Director of the 

Department/Division presenting 

the program (e.g. Parks and 

Recreation, Library, Senior 

Center, Etc.) subject to review 

by the Town Manager 

Sears Park Pavilion (Half Day)  $ 75.00   $ 75.00  4 hours 9am to 1pm or 1pm to 6pm; 

plus $125 Security Deposit

Sears Park Pavilion (Full Day)  $ 125.00   $ 125.00  9am to 6pm; plus $125 Security 

Deposit

Boat Storage (Non‐Town)  $ 50.00   $ 50.00  Per Boat

Non Town use of Sears Park 

Launch/Facilities ‐ Half Day

 $ 75.00   $ 75.00  No Security Deposit

Non Town use of Sears Park 

Launch/Facilities ‐ Full Day

 $ 150.00   $ 150.00  No Security Deposit

Sears Park Access Sticker  No Fee   No Fee  Sticker Provided

Boat Launch Access Sticker  $ 50.00   $ 50.00  Annual 

Kayak/Canoe Storage ‐ Sears Park  $ 100.00   $ 100.00  Price Per Vessel maximum of two 

vessels allowed per family

Field Use Fee Saturday (Non‐Town 

affiliated teams)

 $ 35.00   $ 35.00  Price per hour, four hour minimum, 

plus material costs

Field Use Fee Sunday (Non‐Town 

affiliated teams)

 $ 50.00   $ 50.00  Price per hour, four hour minimum, 

plus material costs

Page 3 of 3



















Agenda Item 9a









































Office of the PLANNING & ZONING OFFICIAL 

JEREMY DECARLI 

jdecarli@easthamptonct.gov 

1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424   |   860.267.7450 tel    |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

MEMORANDUM 

To: David Cox, Town Manager 

From: Jeremy DeCarli 

Date: April 20, 2022 

Re: PA 21-29, Accessory Dwelling Unit Opt-Out Provision 

Public Act 21-29, signed by the Governor in June 2021, made several changes to the zoning enabling 

Statute, CGS Section 8-2. One of the more impactful changes included is a provision requiring all zoning 

regulations throughout the state to allow for accessory dwelling units as an as-of-right use on all 

residential lots. This would allow for administrative approvals on any residential lot anywhere in town so 

long as it met the requirements of the Statutory provisions. The legislation allows for zoning regulations 

to be developed specific to ADU’s, so long as those regulations are not more restrictive than regulations 

for existing primary residential structures.  

The legislation includes the ability to “opt-out” of the ADU requirement. Any municipality that chooses 

top opt-out, must do so with a 2/3 majority vote, and the opt-out must be certified by the legislative body 

(or where the legislative body is a Town Meeting, the Board of Selectman or Council) by a 2/3 majority. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission held a Public Hearing at its March 2, 2022 Regular Meeting, as 

required, and voted to opt-out of the ADU requirement by a vote of 6-1. (While there was discussion 

among members, there were no public comments.) A legal Notice with the decision to approve the opt-out 

was published in the Rivereast News Bulletin on March 11, 2022, as required. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission dedicated significant time and effort to develop regulations 

allowing for Accessory Dwelling Units between 2016 and 2017, adopting the current regulations in the 

fall of 2017 which allow for ADUs with a Special Permit issued by the Commission. The regulations 

were crafted with the goal of allowing for more housing diversity in town, with a focus on the housing 

needs of both older and younger adults, both groups of which tend to need transitional housing which is 

underprovided in town. Smaller dwelling units tend to be more affordable to maintain and rent and 

potentially easier to live in for those with any kinds of disabilities. The regulations allow for a maximum 

livable square footage of 900 square feet with no more than two bedrooms and requires that the owner of 

the property reside on the site (with up to a 120 day hiatus allowed for seasonal residents). The 

regulations allow for both attached and detached units so as to allow some flexibility of living situations. 

The regulations were written with the health, safety, and welfare of residents in mind. The less developed 

areas of town require additional acreage beyond the minimum lot size for several reasons, including, but 

not limited to the lack of municipal sewer service, the lack of municipal water service, the less developed 

nature of those areas, and the general lack of a comprehensive road network. However, in more densely 

developed areas which have municipal sewer service and a more comprehensive street network, the 

increased lot size requirement is eliminated or limited, depending on the underlying zone. One of the 

goals of the regulation was to create more organically occurring affordability which is more realistic in 

more dense environments where services and infrastructure are already in place. 

Since the adoptions of the regulations, a number of Special Permits have been issued for ADUs, in fact, 

not one has been denied. On several occasions where some portion of the application did not fully comply 

with the regulation, the Commission has worked with applicants to make to changes to the plan in order 

to come into compliance, and gain an approval.  

Agenda Item 9b



 

 

2 

1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424   |   860.267.7450 tel    |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

 

Two members of the Planning and Zoning Commission intend to provide a brief presentation to the 

Council at their meeting on April 26 and discuss the reasons for opting out, and asking for the Council to 

complete the process as described in the Public Act.  

 

At this time, the Commission is requesting that the Council consider the measure and respectfully asks 

that the Council complete the process by voting to opt-out in accordance with the requirements of the 

legislation. Approving the opt-out will allow the Commission to retain its existing regulation as approved 

and adopted in 2017. It is not the intention of the Commission to remove the ability to construct ADUs; 

however, it continues the process which the town has used for the last five years and continues to require 

a Special Permit for the approval of ADUs in accordance with the current regulation.  

 

Section 6(f) of Public Act 21-29, which dictates the opt-out process, is copied below for your reference.  

 

 

Sec. 6  

 

(f) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections (a) to (d), inclusive, of this section, the zoning 

commission or combined planning and zoning commission, as applicable, of a municipality, by a two-

thirds vote, may initiate the process by which such municipality opts out of the provisions of said 

subsections regarding allowance of accessory apartments, provided such commission: (1) First holds a 

public hearing in accordance with the provisions of section 8-7d of the general statutes on such proposed 

opt-out, (2) affirmatively decides to opt out of the provisions of said subsections within the period of time 

permitted under section 8-7d of the general statutes, (3) states upon its records the reasons for such 

decision, and (4) publishes notice of such decision in a newspaper having a substantial circulation in the 

municipality not later than fifteen days after such decision has been rendered. Thereafter, the 

municipality's legislative body or, in a municipality where the legislative body is a town meeting, its 

board of selectmen, by a two�thirds vote, may complete the process by which such municipality opts out 

of the provisions of subsections (a) to (d), inclusive, of this section, except that, on and after January 1, 

2023, no municipality may opt out of the provisions of said subsections. 



Accessory Dwelling 
Units
PRESENTATION TO THE TOWN COUNCIL

TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON,  CT

FEBRUARY 28,  2022



What are ADUs? 
Town Definition: “Accessory Dwelling Unit” (ADU)

A dwelling unit with bedroom, kitchen and bathroom facilities created on a building lot that 
is separate and detached from the principal structure.

State Definition: “Accessory Apartment”

A separate dwelling unit that (A) is located on the same lot as a principal dwelling unit of 
greater square footage, (B) has cooking facilities, and (C) complies with or is otherwise 
exempt from any applicable building code, fire code and health and safety regulations.

Examples: an apartment over the garage, a tiny house (on a foundation) in the backyard, a 
basement apartment.



Purpose and Need (Generally)

• Provide additional permanent housing for:

1. The elderly;

2. Single persons; and/or

3. Small families.

• Provide temporary housing for a family member or friend (e.g., “in law apartment,” “granny 
POD”, etc.).

• Can serve as a means of additional income for property owners.

• Provides flexibility and support to aging population of homeowners.

• Helps improve access to affordable housing within single family neighborhoods



PROS and CONS of ADUs
PROS:
• Helps town regulate pre-existing ADUs
• Provides a unique tier of neighborhood-friendly affordable housing
• Sense of security and flexibility for elderly homeowners
• Can provide additional income to homeowners and additional tax revenue to town
• Helps increase density without altering “look and feel” of neighborhood or increasing 

burden on tax base

CONS:
• Could result in excessive density by undermining current regulations for single family zones
• May present parking, fire and public safety problems
• Some argue it benefits some people but not the community as a whole
• Can make it more difficult to predict public service needs (e.g., schools, senior services, etc.)



Town Regulation of ADUs (Summary)

• Effective 3/1/2018, allowed in within the R1, R-3, and R-4 Zones by Special Permit only* 

• Cannot be recognizable from the street as a residence and cannot have a separate address

• Off-street parking required (maximum of two additional parking spaces)

• Only one ADU allowed (attached or detached)

• Owner must reside on the property (120-day hiatus allowed)

• No variances allowed

• Maximum of two bedrooms, 900 sq. ft.

• Additional specifications/requirements based on type (Detached vs. Attached) and zone

*Existing, unpermitted ADUs in any zone are subject to administrative approval. If the existing unpermitted ADU does not conform with this regulation, the use may 
remain but shall not be expanded. 



Public Act No. 21-29 (House Bill 6107 - effective 10/1/21)

• With the passage of HB 6107, Connecticut became the 8th state to “legalize” accessory
apartments anywhere single-family housing is allowed.

• Permits accessory apartments “as of right” without a special permit or public hearing.

• The law limits ADU size to 1000 square feet or 30 percent of the principal dwelling,
whichever is smaller (attached or detached).

• In general, cannot apply standards (set back, coverage, height, landscaping, etc.) which
exceed the standards of the principal dwelling and cannot condition approval on correction
of principal dwelling non-conformities

• Certain other requirements apply



Opt-Out Provisions

• The Town can opt out of the State’s statutory requirements for accessory apartments if the
following are completed prior to January 1, 2023:

• PZC by 2/3 vote must initiate the opt out process by motion and scheduling of a public
hearing.

• After holding a public hearing, the PZC by 2/3 vote must act on and approve a motion to
opt out within the ordinary statutory deadlines.

• A Notice of Decision must be published.

• The opt out must then be ratified by a 2/3 vote of the Town Council.



Office of the PLANNING & ZONING OFFICIAL 
JEREMY DECARLI, AICP 

jdecarli@easthamptonct.gov 

1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424   |   860.267.7450 tel    |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

Summary of Public Act 21-1 

Recreational use of cannabis is now legal within the State of Connecticut and it is anticipated that 
licenses will begin being issued in early 2022 for the productions and sale of products. Municipalities 
with a population of less than 25,000 are eligible host up to one retail operation. The legislation includes 
nine types of licenses available to potential operators (noted below), which include growing and retail 
facilities. 

In broad terms, the legislation is meant to be interpreted, applied, and enforced in a similar manner to 
that of the sale of alcohol. If a municipality chooses not to restrict cannabis sales in town, it must be 
treated in a similar manner to alcohol sales and the use would be subject to a Special Permit. 
Municipalities have the option of restricting all or some of the license types within their border, as noted 
below.  

Some highlights of the legislation as they relate to zoning are: 
• Allows for the private growing of up to three plants for personal use.
• Allows municipalities to prohibit cannabis establishments from opening within their jurisdiction.
• Prohibits municipalities from banning cannabis delivery.
• Allows local referendum on whether or not to allow the sale of marijuana for adult use. To

qualify for the ballot, 10% of voters must sign a petition.
• Allows municipalities to reasonably restrict cannabis establishments’ hours and signage.
• Allows municipalities to reasonably restrict cannabis establishments’ number or density. Until

June 30, 2024, sets a maximum of one retailer and one cannabis micro-cultivator (which can sell
at retail) per 25,000 residents, as determined by the most recent census. Beginning July 1, 2024,
the DCP will set a new limit.

• Municipalities may, through zoning or ordinance:
o Prohibit the siting of cannabis establishments,
o Reasonably restrict hours and signage; and
o Restrict cannabis establishments’ proximity to religious institutions, schools, charitable

institutions, hospitals, veterans’ homes, or certain military establishments.
There are nine types of licenses established as part of the bill: 

1. retailer
2. hybrid retailer (which sells both adult-use and medical cannabis)
3. cultivator (which cultivate 15,000 square feet or more)
4. micro-cultivator (which start between 2,000 and 10,000 square feet)
5. product manufacturer
6. food and beverage manufacturer
7. product packager
8. delivery service
9. transporter

There are two options for restricting the sale of cannabis:  
Zoning Regulations - The Commission can prohibit one or more, of the license types in town (Must be 
done before June 2022) 

Ordinance - The Town Council could enact an ordinance prohibiting the sales of cannabis in Town (must 
be done before June 2022)  

Agenda Item 9c

David
Text Box
As of September 2021



Municipal Resource and Service Center

545 Long Wharf, 8th Floor, New Haven, CT 06511   203-498-3000   www.ccm-ct.org

Recreational Cannabis 
January 10, 2022

Introduction: 

In June 2021, the Connecticut General Assembly passed and Governor Ned Lamont signed SB 
1201, which legalizes recreational cannabis (marijuana). This bulletin will lay out the basics of the 
law, and specifically highlight relevant provisions for municipalities. 

Bill Summary: 

As of July 1, 2021, possession of 1.5 oz. of cannabis is now legal for adults over age 21. 
Connecticut residents may store up to 5 oz. in a locked container or transport it in a locked 
glovebox or trunk.  

Municipal Authority: 

Cities and towns have four options regarding zoning regulations and cannabis establishments: 
1) Take no action

2) Zone for it

3) Zone against it

4) Implement a moratorium

Municipalities have the authority to regulate cannabis sales and use within their borders in the 
following ways: 

1) Local Referendum

Upon the petition of 10% of the voters, a referendum must be held on whether to allow

recreational marijuana sales or whether to allow certain types of cannabis businesses.

(§83(a))

The ballot questions should read: 

 “Shall the sale of recreational marijuana be allowed in [MUNICIPALITY]?”

or;

 “Shall the sale of cannabis under (Specified license or licenses) be allowed

in [MUNICIPALITY]?”; or

Research Bulletin 



CCM Municipal Resource and Service Center Recreational Cannabis Page 2 of 6

 “Shall the sale of recreational marijuana be prohibited (No Licenses) in 

[MUNICIPALITY]?” 

2) Local Zoning Authority 

Municipalities may amend zoning regulations or enact local ordinances to take the 

following actions regarding cannabis establishments: 

 Prohibit their establishment 

 Reasonably restrict their hours or signage 

 Restrict their proximity to public or parochial schools, charitable institutions, 

hospitals, veterans’ homes, or certain military establishments or religious 

institutions. 

The municipal chief zoning official must report these changes to the Secretary of the 
Office of Policy & Management and the Department of Consumer Protection in writing 
within 14 days of adoption.  

The act generally prohibits any restrictions on cannabis establishment hours, zoning, or 
signage from applying existing businesses until five years after the restriction is adopted. 
This does not apply if the business converts to a different license type.  

If a municipality takes no action through ordinance or zoning regulations, these 
establishments must be zoned as similar uses would be. 

3) Municipal ordinances banning consumption in municipally-owned spaces. 

Affirmative Zoning Approval for Retailers and Micro-Cultivators 

Until June 30, 2024, municipalities are prohibited from granting zoning approval for more 
retailers or micro-cultivators than a number that would allow for one retailer and one micro-
cultivator for every 25,000 municipal residents, as determined by the most recent decennial 
census. Beginning July 1, 2024, the DCP Commissioner may post on the DCP website a specific 
number of residents such that no municipality shall grant zoning approval for more retailers or 
micro-cultivators than would result in one of each for every such specific number of residents, as 
determined by the commissioner. 

To ensure compliance, the law requires a special permit or other affirmative approval for any 
retailer or micro-cultivator seeking to be located within a municipality. A municipality must not grant 
the special permit or approval for any applicant if an approval would result in exceeding the density 
cap set by the bill or DCP Commissioner. The purpose of the special permit or other affirmative 
approval is not to require a public meeting or any other steps or procedures than would otherwise 
be required under a municipality’s zoning ordinance, but rather to ensure that no more retailers or 
micro-cultivators are granted zoning approval than the number allowable under the legislation. 



CCM Municipal Resource and Service Center Recreational Cannabis Page 3 of 6

Regulations of Smoking and Cannabis Use 

Through September 30, 2021, municipalities may regulate, on any property owned by the 
municipality any activity deemed to be deleterious to public health, including the lighting or 
carrying of a lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, or similar device. 

Effective October 1, municipalities may regulate certain activities (any activity deemed to be 
deleterious to public health, including the lighting or carrying of a lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, 
or similar device) on municipally-owned property and property that a municipality controls but 
does not own. Property that a municipality controls includes, but is not limited to, sidewalks, 
parks, beaches, municipal land and building, etc. The regulatory authority applies to smoked or 
vaped tobacco or cannabis and other types of cannabis use or consumption. 

For municipalities with more than 50,000 people, if they regulate the public use of cannabis, the 
must designate a location in the municipality where public consumption is allowed. This section 
of the bill does not require that these municipalities provide for a location where any or all forms 
of cannabis can be consumed, but only some forms of cannabis can be consumed. The most 
common forms of consumption are smoking, vaping and edibles. Through these regulations, 
municipalities may set fines for violations by individuals regarding outdoor consumption of 
cannabis up to $50.  

Municipalities are permitted to ban cannabis smoking and vaping at outdoor sections of 
restaurants. Through regulations, cities and towns may set fines for violations of up to $1,000 for 
businesses who allow cannabis smoking or vaping contrary to the regulation of the municipality. 

Municipal Sales Tax 

A 3% municipal sales tax is imposed on the sale of cannabis, in addition to the state’s 6.35% sales 
tax and the state cannabis tax established in the law. The municipal sales tax will be administered 
through DRS, though the municipality will be responsible for collecting the appropriate amounts 
as identified by DRS. 

Each municipality with a cannabis retailer, hybrid retailer or micro-cultivator must submit to DRS, 
at least annually, the name and contact information of the individual designated to receive 
notifications regarding the tax. The DRS Commissioner will then notify the designee of the tax 
amount reported due from the retailers. 

The tax funds become a part of the municipality’s general fund and may only be used for the 
following purposes: 

1. Streetscape improvements and other neighborhood developments in the communities 

where cannabis retailers or other establishments are located; 

2. Education programs or youth employment and training programs in the municipality; 



CCM Municipal Resource and Service Center Recreational Cannabis Page 4 of 6

3. Services for individuals living in the municipality who were released from DOC custody, 

probation or parole; 

4. Mental health or addiction services; 

5. Youth service bureaus and municipal juvenile review boards; and 

6. Community civic engagement efforts. 

Employment and Labor Provisions 

Effective date July 1, 2022, with some exceptions 
In general under the law, employers have a good degree of latitude in regulating the use of 
recreational marijuana by employees, especially those in “exempted” employers or positions.  

Exempted employers include employers whose primary activity is: 

 Utilities, including electric power generation and distribution and water and sewer 

systems 

 Transportation 

 Educational services, including K-12 schools 

 Health Care or Social Services 

 Justice and public safety, including police and fire. 

Exempted positions include: 

 Firefighters and emergency medical technicians 

 Police officers 

 Positions that require driving a motor vehicle for which federal or state law requires an 

employee to submit to screening tests, including any position requiring a commercial 

driver’s license; 

 Those for which the bill’s employment provisions are inconsistent or otherwise in conflict 

with (a) an employment contract or collective bargaining agreement or (b) any provision 

of federal law 

 Those funded in whole or in part by a federal grant 

 Those providing supervision or care of children, medical patients, or vulnerable people; 

 Those with, in the employer’s determination, the potential to adversely impact the health 

or safety of employees or the public 

No employer is required to make accommodations for an employee or be required to allow an 
employee to (1) perform his or her duties while under the influence of cannabis  or (2) possess, 
use, or otherwise consume cannabis while performing work duties or on the employer’s 
premises, except for possession of medical marijuana by a qualifying patient under state law. 

For more information on the employment aspects of the law, please see this Employment Law 
Letter post from Shipman & Goodwin. 



CCM Municipal Resource and Service Center Recreational Cannabis Page 5 of 6

Delivery and Transport: 

Municipalities may not prohibit the delivery of cannabis to consumer or qualifying medical 
marijuana patients or their caregivers if the delivery is made by someone authorized to do so 
under the law (e.g. delivery services). Municipalities are also barred from prohibiting the 
transport of cannabis to, from or through the municipality by anyone licensed or registered to do 
so. 

Ban on Certain Actions and Local Host Agreements 

Municipalities are prohibited from conditioning any official action on, or accepting any donations 
from, any cannabis establishment or applicants for cannabis establishment licenses in the 
municipality. They are also barred from negotiating or entering into local host agreements with 
cannabis establishments or license applicants. 

Further Information 

 Connecticut General Assembly Bill Page, including  the bill text and summary

 OPM Guidance on Municipal Authority in the bill

 Adult-Use Cannabis in Connecticut website from State of Connecticut



CCM Municipal Resource and Service Center Recreational Cannabis Page 6 of 6

Resources 

 Town of Greenwich-Zoning Ordinance Amendment-Prohibition of cannabis 

establishments 

 Town of Enfield- Proposed municipal ordinance banning cannabis establishments 

 City of Middletown-Zoning Amendments allowing cannabis micro-cultivation and retail 

sales 

 Town of Newington-Zoning regulations allowing cannabis cultivation and retail sales 

 Town of Westport-Proposed zoning amendment prohibiting cannabis establishments, 

except medical 

 City of Waterbury-Presentation on limited and temporary moratorium on cannabis 

establishments 

 Shipman & Goodwin presentation on recreational marijuana provisions for employers 

(October 2021) 

 Pullman & Comley presentation on different aspects of the recreational cannabis law in 

Connecticut (October 2021) 

 SHRM-Workplace Drug Testing: Can Employers Still Screen for Marijuana 

 SHRM-Workplace Drug Testing: What to Do When Employees Fail 



Town Hearing Date Approval Date Regulation Number Decision Description
Berlin TBD TBD TBD Moratorium 12-month (August, 2021 to August, 2022)

Chester TBD TBD TBD Pending TBD
Clinton NA 11/8/2021 Section 27.1, 27.2, 27.3 Prohibtion Medical and Recreational Marijuana

Colchester TBD TBD TBD Moratorium 12-month (September 20, 2021 to September 20, 2022)

Cromwell 4/19/2022 (cont)Pending Sections 3.5.C.4, 6.11 Proposed
Retail Sale and Cultivation of Marijuana (Town Council 
approved)

Deep River 5/18/2022 5/2/2022 TBD Proposed Regulations to Establish Cannabis Sales/Production

Durham 5/4/2022 Pending Section 14.7 Proposed Sale and Microcultivation (current moratorium in effect)
East Haddam TBD TBD TBD Moratorium 6-month (exp. 6/22)
East Hampton TBD TBD TBD Moratorium 12-month (10/21/21 to 10/21/22)

East Lyme NA 10/28/2021 Section 11.2.13, 25.5 Approved Retail and Micro-Cultivator, LI Zone (one site available)
Essex TBD TBD Moratorium 12-month (12/31/21 to 12/31/22)

Fenwick NA NA NA NA Will not address.  Residential and Golf Zoning Only
Haddam NA NA Prohibition Recreational Marijuana

Killingworth TBD TBD TBD Pending
Medical marijuana retail in commercial/industrial. No action on 
adult-use.

Lyme May, 2022 TBD TBD Pending Moratorium to be established, likely May, 2022
Madison TBD TBD TBD Moratorium 9-month (November 5, 2021 through August 5, 2022)
Meriden NA 11/29/21 Eff. Section 213-30 M-2; M-3 Approved Microcultivator (11/29/21); Retail/Hybrid (9/14/21)

Middlefield NA 10/12/2021 Section 3.7 Prohibition All cannabis uses prohibited

Middletown NA 8/19/2021
Section 16.6, 40.04, 40.08, 
61.02 Approved Retail Sales and Microcultivation

Old Lyme NA NA Prohibition All retail sales and cultivation

Old Saybrook 5/2/2021 Pending Proposed

Prohibition, new retail, manufacturing cultivation. Allow 
existing to remain, allow expansion of existing with SpEx. 
Prohibit Venues where wapped or exchanged

Portland 5/19/2021 TBD Tables 5.1, 6.1 Proposed Retail Sale, Cultivator/Microcultivator via SpPermit

Rocky Hill NA NA
Section 4.B.2, 4.B.6, 6.O.1, 
6.0.2 Approved Medical Marijuana Dispensaries, Producer

Salem TBD TBD TBD Pending To be brought up in several months after PoCD

Westbrook 5/26/2022 4/22/2022 Section 6.S Proposed
6-month Moratorium, Establishment of Cannabis 
Sales/Production (two coincident petitions)



1"=752'
5/5/2022 12:15:58 PMThe information depicted on this map is for planning purposes only.

It is not adequate for legal boundary definition, regulatory 
interpretation, or parcel-level analyses.

Scale is approximate
Scale:

Rotary Parcel

Private Lands

Private Lands

Town Lands

Middlesex Land
Trust Land

Memorial School

Air Line Trail

Agenda Item 9d



DRAFT - May 2022
Agenda Item 9e



DRAFT - May 2022



Agenda Item 12


	Accessory Dwelling Units.pdf
	Accessory Dwelling Units
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7

	CCM Recreational-Cannabis-January-2022 Summary.pdf
	Recreational Cannabis Research Brief
	Enfield Ordinance-Recreational Sale Ban Sept 7 2021
	Greenwich-PZ Amendment-Cannabis Sale Ban
	Middletown-Cannabis Cultivation and Retail-Approved Amendments
	Newington Zoning Changes-Allowing Rec Use-Markup
	Waterbury-Presentation_-_Moratorium_Option
	Westport Zoning-Prohibit Dispensaries except medical-24 months
	Shipman and Goodwin-Marijuana Policies for Employers
	Fall Labor and Employment �Webinar Series�2021 – A Year in Review and Looking Forward to 2022
	Recreational Marijuana�Provisions for Employers
	Take Control of Your Console 
	Presentation Roadmap
	RERACA:�What Connecticut’s new recreational marijuana law does and does not allow
	New Rules Effective July 1, 2022
	Exempt Employers
	Non-Exempt Employers & Positions
	Exempt Employers and Positions
	Consequences for Violating RERACA
	Problems with Marijuana Testing
	Smoking in the Workplace
	Slide Number 13
	What Employers Should Do TODAY
	Scenario 1:
	Can you deny her employment? 
	Scenario 2:
	Can you still hire him? 
	Scenario 3:
	Is this legal? 
	Summary
	Slide Number 22
	Connect With Us:

	Pullman & Comley: Cannabis in Connecticut
	What-to-Do-When-an-Employee-Fails-a-Drug-Test.aspx
	Can-Employers-Still-Test-for-Marijuana.aspx




